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Life before
white settlers

For details see page 5.

. The history of South Whidbey
. didn’t begin with the white man.

South Whidbey Record

n Island In A State

South Whidbe

Fairhaven
at the dock

The Fairhaven at the La

dock in 1913. For more on Lang-

ley's history see page 3.
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The Dog House blillding in 1921 was first built to house s

porting events for the town of Langley. Later the bullding became the
Langley Merchantile owned by Walter J. and Oscar Hunziker, pictured in front. For much more on Langley’s history, and for the

history of Clinton and Freeland as well, see the storles Inside this special historical section. (Photo courtesy of Walt Hunziker.)

South Whidbey pioneer families

By LORINDA KAY
Record reporter

The unknown unexplored wilder-
ness of South Whidbey intrigued
only a handful of white settlers pri-
or to 1889 when Washington be-
came a state. These few pioneers
were greeted by an untamed land
with huge dense forests of fir, hem-
lock and cedar.

For many early settlers their only
neighbors were the Indians who en-
joyed the pristine wilderness of
South Whidbey long before the ar-
rival of the white man. Many of
those first pioneers married Indian
women and established large fami-
lies, leaving many descendants of
white and Indian origin.

Certainly not every settler is cov-
ered in this story but a substantial
number of the first settlers prior to
the 1900’s are here. This informa-
tion was condensed from the books
written by Lorna Cherry called
South Whidbey and Its People.
Thanks to her efforts and the efforts
of the South Whidbey Historical
Society these stories will be availa-
ble to the future generations of
South Whidbey, giving a look at the
lifestyles of those first settlers.

The first recorded white land ow-
ner on South Whidbey was a young
man from Virginia, Robert Bailey,
who came to the Indian village of
Digwadsh on the southern tip of the
island in 1850. He was a 26 year old
trader intent on doing business with
the Indians, but decided to stay on
the beautiful, horseshoe shaped bay
which was later to bear his name,
Bailey’s Bay. Today that bay is

known as Cultus Bay.

On Sept, 1, 1852 he filed a claim
in the US. Land Patent office in
Washington D.C. Bailey married a
woman from the Digwadsh village
and established a home and a trad-
ing post on his land.

By 1859 he had become the Indi-
an agent for the Snohomish, Sno-
qualmie, Skykomish and Stillaqua-
mish tribes totaling about 1600
members. He and his wife also be-
came the parents of two sons and a
daughter.

His son Henry married a Dig-
wadsh girl and they had two sons,
Henry and George and a daughter,
Laura. The year Laura was 16, Wil-
liam Jewett arrived from Indiana
and took out homestead rights on
the land next to the Baileys. The
following year, 1889, he and Laura
were married.

William Jewett built a house on
his property and he and Laura de-
veloped a farm and raised a family
of three children, Eva Grace, Joseph
and Elmer,

Bailey Road still carries Robert
Bailey’'s name and connects the
Scatchet Head area with Maxwel-
ton. Jewett Road, which leads from
Bailey Road to Glendale Road, was
named for William Jewett. Rem-
nants of the Indian village of Dig-
wadsh and the adjacent Indian buri-
al ground, are found occasionally
around the bay.

Another white settler, William T.
Johnson, settled on Double Bluff
about the same time that Bailey
was establishing a home.

Few written records concerning

Nathaniel Porter came to the island in 1859 after a colorful |
career as a seaman, cavalryman and farmer. One of the earliest
pioneers of South Whidbey, Porter was an important leader in
the community. Photo courtesy of Gloria Porter Campbell.

him have been located, although Ja-
cob Anthes, in his memoirs, refers
to having visited a Mr. Johnson liv-
ing in the vicinity of Double Bluff
in 1880.

The actual date of Johnson’s ar-
rival is not known but it is known
that he took an Indian girl, Gah-toh-
litsa, born in 1860, as his wife. She
was closely related to one of the
Snohomish tribal chiefs and the
land upon which Johnson and his
wife settled apparently was tribal
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00 years

Join this imaginary
South Whidbey tour
on day of statehood

! By LORNA CHERRY

Big events in life demand big attention, sort of like putting an exclama-
tion point instead of a period at the end of a sentence. However, life is
lived one day at a time, mostly with periods.

Big events rating exclamation points usually are highly personal experi-
| ences. Impersonal big events can shake up the world yet scarcely touch
individuals.

When Washington graduated from a territory to a state it was a big
event affecting the nation as well as a sizeable number of individuals who
had worked hard for almost 10 years to bring it about. There was
| jubilation and celebration in Olympia, the capital of the new state but
what was its effect on folks living in South Whidbey at that time? Did it
fill their days with exclamation points?

There are no known records to prove how the news of Washington’s
statehood came to South Whidbey but there are records which show what
the citizens were doing right at that time.

Let us pretend that there was a courier sent from Olympia to bring the
news to the handful of settlers residing in the area. He would have been
given a list of names of the people he should contact, the names having
been taken from census records.

\ Our first settler

The first name of his list would be Robert Bailey, South Whidbey’s first
permanent settler who had owned a farm and trading post ever since 1852
on the southern tip of Whidbey Island beside the bay which bore his
name.

Our imaginary courier sailed his boat into the bay, shouting his big
| news. Folks were gathered beside a building on the shore and there
| appeared to be a lot of excitement, but nobody paid much attention to our
| courier and his news. The reason was because a really big personal event

was in progress. Sixteen year old Laura Bailey and William Jewett, a
young man whe arrived from Indiana the previous vear, were in the
| middle of a wedding.

Our courier didn’t linger long but sailed out of the bay, aroand Skagit
| Head into Admiralty Inlet. The next name on his list was Mike Lyons whao

was supposed to have a home and logging operation on the location which
| later became Maxwelton. The house was there and so were signs that
| there once had been logging going on but everything appeared deserted.
Our courier had no way of knowing that Mike Lyons and his wife had left

| | the island and returned to the hotel they owned in Port Ludlow.

Somewhat dejected our courier sailed on north along the west coast of
‘ the island and into Useless Bay. Here things started looking up. He found

A people.

Away back in 1868 two adventurous young men, Edward Oliver and

! Thomas John Johns, had homesteaded property in the Deer Lagoon area.
| In the ensuing 20 years they had developed their land, done extensive
logging, married, raised families and became solid citizens. News of
Washington’s statechood might have been received with interest by them

i | except that a really big personal event was in progress right then. Mary

land belonging to her. According to
her great grandson, Robert Porter
of Langley, her English name was
Jane Newberry.

William Johnson and Gah-toh-
litsa had several children, including
a daughter, Louisa. They were far-
mers and it was Johnson's custom
to row across Admiralty Inlet peri-
odically with a boat load of vegeta-
bles and other produce to be sold or
traded at Port Townsend. During

PLEASE TURN TO PAGE 4
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‘ Jane Johns was giving birth to a daughter, which event was causing quite a
| commotion.

Loath to try to upstage the stork our courier left Useless Bay, sailed
| around Double Bluff and into Mutiny Bay. Here, according to his list, he
| should find a prominent citizen named Nathanial Porter.

| As he rounded Windmill promentory and Willow Point came into view
he gave a gasp of astonishment. Flames and smoke were rising to high
| heaven from a burning building on shore. Indians were running about
shouting and a big, angry white man seemed to be chasing them.
Qur courier didn’t know what all this was about but he did know that he
wanted to be long gone from the ruckus. The truth of the matter was that
a large group of Indians had been holding a potlatch in their long house
for several days, whooping it up and showing no signs of leaving. The
racket and general goings-on were more that Madsen could tolerate so he
was burning down their headquarters in the long house.
By now our gentleman with the news of statehood was quite discour-
| aged. He was beginning to think that nobody on South Whidbey gave a
| tinker's darn whether they lived in a territory or a state. However, he still
| had a couple of important settlements on his list but they were on the
eastern shore of the island.

The eastern shore

He turned his boat around, retraced his route going south back to
Skagit Head, then past Bailey's Bay. He wondered if the Baileys had
settled down by now after the wedding but he was in no mood to stop and
find out.

On he sailed around Possession Point and then north up the eastern
shore until he came to the settlement shown on his list as Clinton. Things
began to look promising. Clinton was real civilization with a dock, a store,
a shingle mill and evidences of lively cord wood business.

He tied his boat up to the dock and, since there seemed to be nobody in
sight, he headed for the store from which he could hear a babble of
voices. His list said to ask for Edward or Henry Hinman, the owners of
the store. He entered, pushed his way through an excited group of people,
all talking at once and surrounding an important looking man who
seemed to be in charge.

“I'm looking for Edward Hinman,” our courier addressed the man.
‘*Are you he?"

*No, I'm his brother, Henry. We are all looking for Edward too. Do you
know anything about where he might be? He was supposed to be on the
ship from Alaska that just docked in Seattle but we’ve just got word that
only his belongings arrived. They think he was murdered for the big sack
of gold he had mined and was bringing home. We are just getting ready to
leave for Seattle, claim his things and see if we can find out what
happened to him. Why are you here?” .

“I've come to deliver the news that the president of the United States
has finally signed a bill making Washington the 42nd state in the Union."”

“That is really great news,” Hinman answered politely but he obvious-
ly had his mind on the other matter. “I'd be right proud to talk to you
about this important matter but at some other time. Not right now.”

PLEASE TURN TO PAGE 4
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Socialists start Freeland, others make

By LORINDA KAY
Record reporter

At the southern end of Holmes
Harbor a unique community was es-
tablished with the promise of free
land and equally shared profits for
all its members. The group has long
since disbanded but the community
of Freeland still bears the namesake
of that bright hope.

A band of Socialists, an off-shoot
of the Equality colony in it
County, camie to this area in 1900 to
settle @md build their own
Utopia. o

The Whidbey project was spon-
sored by a Seattle company under
the direction of James Gleason who
owned the land around the harbor.

Each member of the Free Land
Association was to have a five acre
plot upon which to build a home
and farm.

The members paid $10 down on
the property and the rest of the pay-
ments were to be made from the
profits of the cooperative enterpris-
es.

The official newspaper of the
group was the Whidby Islander
which carried the by-laws of the as-
sociation, an editorial platform and
news of the struggle to keep the
community alive.
The socialist colony owned the
Freeland Cooperative store at
Holmes Harbor, set aside land for a
cooperative mill and built the Free-
_land Community Hall which still

s 2
The hall was built on five acres of
land donated by the Socialist group
in 1912. Colony members donated

their tim¢ and materials and sere
to be as revenue was received
for the use ofthe hall, -

William Lieseke, a leader in the
original Free Land Association,
held the deed to the property in
trust and a copy of the original doc-
ument dedicating the property to
the “people” with no government
agency to have any control.

in Seattle, which was the supply
source for the Freeland store, failed
and contributed to the failure of the

NG o

The pencer store and post office on Holmes Harbor was the center of activity In early-day Freeland. On the right is the Spencer

home which was later remodeled and is now the Plliars by the Sea Bed and Breakfast. The Spencers include Sarah Adams Spencer,
left, Hudson Spencer, Carrie, Margerie, Hugh, Artene, Arthur and Ethel Partridge Spencer. Photo was taken sometime between 1916
and 1919. (Photo courtesy of Bonnle Cameron)

local store. The Freeland store
ceased operation, until Henry Blair
re-opened it and operated it until
1917 when J. H. Prather and Wilbur
Hazen took over and continued it as
a cooperative venture.

In April 15, 1903 the editors of
the Whidby Islander announced the
paper’s probable demise but made a
valiant attempt to gain support for
the socialists.

Socialist colony struggles

The colony struggled for exist-
ence for the next 10 years. Several
members moved away but others re-
mained to become integrated into
the overall life of the community,
such as William Lieseke, who con-
tinued to play an important part in
Freeland's development. ™

But there were H ilies in
the area not conpiected with the Sg-

Signs of Change

S g

Clinton, in 1980.

Hope Supermarket opens at Ken’s Korner Plaza,

Myers’ Mark & Pak, owned by Kent Myers, re-
places Hope Supermarket.

In March 1989, Myer’s Mark & Pak changes to a
full service grocery store, featuring meat, deli,
video, ery, floral and catering departments,
with hg‘agcsd variety throughout the store.

&f%

Myers’ Red Ap
Ken'’s Korner Plaza ¢ Clinton * 221-2414
9a.m. to9 p.m. 7 days per week

ple Market

cialist colony, who were setting up
homes, businesses and farms-in the

area at the same time the Freeland
colony had afrived. The political
differences of the two factions

to the mistrust and often open-ani-

mosity between the two- factions of
the struggling community.

Other e —pioneers_to the
Holmes r area included the
family of\Hudson and Sarah Spen-

cer who ‘originally from Mas-
sachusetts. 2

In 1904 the Spencers moved to
the newly developing arca called
Freeland with their grown children,
Percy, Mjnnie,énd Arthur. They also
brought their Jaughter-in-law/Car-
rie, whose husband, Hugh;"was a
tugboat captain and-spént much of
his time at sea. |

The family purchased land and
the various members set about de-
veloping homes and businesses, in-
cluding the Harbor Cash Store,
owned by Hudson and Sarah, but all
members of the family worked in it
at one time or another.

Spencer family businesses

Family members established a
machine shop, a dock, a sawmill and
a log peeling factory for making
mining props which were shipped to
Mexico aboard the freighter, Provi-
dencia.

The Spencer men also had a log-
ging operation a few miles up the
west shore of Holmes Harbor near
a spot known as Dogfish Bay.

The women in the Spencer family
as well as other community women
were active organizing themselves
into a charitable and cultural socie-
ty.
In 1902 a group started for the
purpose of sewing and otherwise
helping the less fortunate members
of the community.

The group became known as
““The First Thursday Club” and ad-
ded cultural activities to its activi-
ties including book reviews, study
classes and home talent plays.

After the completion of the Free-
land Hall the club held most of its
meetings and drama presentations
in the new hall.
Vari g

FPostmaster Martin -Davison
who rémained there until June of
1904 wheithe office was discontin-
ued for lack of business.

The office was re-established on
April 24, 1914, with Hudson Spen-
cer as postmaster. He conducted
the office along with a grocery and
variety store for the next 20 years

until he retired in 1934 and his son,
Percy Spencer was appointed post-
master.

The Austin Store

Another landmark in the Free-
land area was the old Austin Store
run by Austin “Deke” Marshall
from 1937 to 1966. The store is now
occupied by the Gay 90’s Pizza
House just off Highway 525.

Austin’s father T. H. Marshall pi-
oneered the area at Mut‘m?@gri-
or to 1880, Fhat-area was once ¢al-
/named by Marshall’s
father why filed the original deed
in order to establish a
post office there. ™

Deke was born in Langley in 1894
and attended the second school /
built in the Austin area just up the
beach from the Mutiny Bay Resort.

Deke became a well known “na-
tive son” of the Freeland area and
is still long remembered after his
death in January 1974,

g
g

Other early pioneers in the Bush
Point area were Christine and Willi-
am Dow who came to the island in
1905.

They are remembered today by
their granddaughter, Madilyn Per-
menter who gave the following ac-
count of their lives.

There were 10 children that ac-

it prosper

companied William and Christine
from Iowa to Whidbey Island. Their
youngest child was born on the
island.

“They bought property from the
Oliver family who lived at Double
Bluff,” Madilyn recalled.

The Dows built a log house from
trees on their property. William was
hurt during a logging operation
when he was skidding logs down the
beach.

“He couldn’t work much after
that,”Madilyn said.

But she remembers her grand-
mother, Christine, took on much of
the work around the farm.

“She put in the hay, and that was
in the days before bailing.” She also
raised the garden, canned and
butchered.”

“My Grandmother was from De-
nmark and came to the United
States when she was eight years
old,” Madilyn said.

Christine never attended an
American school but she was a
great speller and never spoke with
an accent. She taught herself to
read and write in English and was
an avid reader.

Madilyn recalls that nothing ever
went to waste on her grandparents
farm. When a hog was butchered
the head was made into head
cheese, the blood was used for pud-
ding and the pigs feet were pickled.

The only thing Madilyn recalls
about these delicacies was “not lik-
ing them very much.”

Bayview area develops

The first store in the Bayview
area was located at the end of the
lagoon in the Useless Bay area and
was built and operated by Ernie
Meyers around 1908.

A small warchouse on the shore
of the lagoon just below the store
had a loading dock for the boat
which brought in shipments of
goods on high tide.

Meyers also operated a feed and
grain business. The store burned in
1916 and was not rebuilt because
the lagoon was diked shortly after-
ward in 1918 and navigation there

But in 1924 William Burk built a
new general store a quarter of a
mile northeast of the one that had

burned.

It was situated on what was then
the main 0 Coupeville and
named Bayview h Store.
The B, operated the/store for
about §ix years, sellingt to Harold
Johnstog in 1930,

The s etame a community
landmark during the years it was
owned by Johnston prior to his re-
tirement.

Today the building is owned by
Bill Lanning, Jr. who operates Bill's
Feed and Tack.

bey Business Services

Red Apple Market,

KEN'S KORNER

Ken's Korner, located at the intersection of State Highway 525 and
the Langley-Cultus Bay roads, was originally settled by a bachelor
farmer In the 1920's. When his cabin burned, the farmer left the
area and his land was Incorporated into the Waterman Mill proper-
ty. In 1932, at the present site of Naomi's Texaco, “Windy” Wilson
opened the first machine shop on South Whidbey Island. The ma-
chine shop was eventually sold to a Mr. Riers, and the area was
known as Rier's Corner for a while. The site was purchased by Ken
Paulson, who turned the garage and machine shop Into a general
store. The business property was called Ken's Korner, the name
which now identifies the entire area. In 1969, the store burned. It
was replaced by the present service station and convenience store.

In 1980 Ken's Korner Shopping Plaza was constructed, which con-
tained South Whidbey Shoes, Dolly's Clothing, South Whidbey
Sports, Island Fabrics Etc,, a hairdresser and a restaurant. In 1984,
Peppers Restaurant replaced the original restaurant, South Whid-
began business, and Lauren's Hair Plus
moved to the Plaza. In 1985 Fashions Unlimited replaced Dolly’s,
and in 1988 Lightning joined the other shops. Myers' Mark & Pak
opened in 1981, and in March 1989 the grocery changed to Myer's

Complete line of fabrics,
notions and crafts

Bemina Machlines Avallable
Sewing and Craft Classes
221-3545

A Family Clothing
Store For
Island Living

321-4535

saNDfe 4
SSFABRICS
; A\

e
Hair Plus

A Progressive Family Salon
Expert and Creative Hair Designs
Cuts, Perms, Color

Free Consultation With Appointment
321-6405 + Tuesday through Saturday

Enjoy the warmth of our italit
i Your hosls. A;l.fn md'g;?lw' 4
e s e

Shoes for the
Entire Family
. Dress * Boots + Sneakers

. Slippers + Purses * Socks
221-7771

emphasis on roses. In 1989, the nursery
will be carrying over 800 rose plants, with
close to 100 varieties. Clinton Nursery
provides help with plant questions and
problems. When purchasing plants, ask
about the plant guarantee.

Clinton Nursery and Florist has con-
tinued to grow. Suzanne Garvey, profes-
sionally trained floral designer, prepares
award-winning arrangements for wed-
dings, holidays, funeral or any special oc-
casion. Peggy Blackburn, newest
member of the Clinton Nursery and Florist
staff, helps in the nursery and floral areas.

In the 15 years Clinton's only nursery
has been in existence, it has grown from
a small nursery with some cut flowers to
the largest nursery and florist on South
Whidbey Island. Robert Sjodin purchas-
ed the business from Wiley Wood
Nursery in 1985, and quickly added an

expanded floral department. Within a year
of the purchase, Clinton Nursery and
Florist had a full service florist with wire
service and local delivery anywhere be-
tween Clinton and Coupeville. The
nursery continued to grow

Clinton Nursery and Florist specialized
in unusual plants for the yard, with special

When you're looking for a special or
unusual item, or large quantities of more
common varieties, Clinton Nursery and
Florist can have the items at the shop in
3 to 5 days, depending upon availability
locally (off island). Like any smaller
nursery, Clinton Nursery and Florist can't
carry everything, but they do their best
to find what you need.

Stop by and browse. It's just about
planting time. Or select an arrangement
from the floral department It'll make you
smile. 1

We deliver from Clinton
To Coupeville.

Member: AFS and Florafax —

delivery to anywhere in the world.

CLINTON NUSRSERY AND FLORIST

4625 Highway 525 ¢ Clinton * 321-6988
Open Monday-Saturday 9 a.

)

i
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m.-5 p.m. * Closed Sunday
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Langley’s story begins
as young Jacob Anthes
stakes out his own city

By LORINDA KAY
Recond reporter

The story of Langley, the only in-
corporated city on South Whidbey,
begins with a 15 year old boy from
Germany named Jacob Anthes who
came (o the forest wilderness in the
fall of 1880.

Anthes was hired to hold down a
homesiead for a man named Pat
Quinn whom he met in Seattle.
Anthes arrived at the homestead lo-
cated in the arca that is Langley
today, to find the home was really a
shack about 10 by 12 feet in size
with a leaking roof and surrounded
by woods and ferns.

He lived on the homestead only a
short time when another couple ar-
rived to take over the job for Quinn.
But Anthes was destined to stay on
the island which he considered a
paradise.

Anthes found work clearing a cat-
tle trail to the Van Zand’s farm at
Sandy Point.

He explored the southend of the
island and met most of the early
settlers, according to his own story
printed in Lorna Cherry’s book
“Langley, The Village by the Sea.”

Since Anthes was too young to
file a homestead, Joseph Brown, an
carly settler at Sandy Point, encour-
aged young Anthes to purchase
land.

In 1881 Anthes purchased 120
acres of land from John Phinney for
$100 about one-half mile west of

Langley.

Anthes worked at cutting cord
wood to supply steamers traveling
Saratoga Passage.

When he was 21 he filed a home-

stead of 160 acres adjoining the
present town of Langley and filed a
timber claim which earned him suf-
ficient money in the logging opera-
tion to pay for the claim.

In 1889, during the building of the
Great Northern Railway to the
coast, the laying out of townsites
became a mania, according to Anth-
es’ story.

Langley Land Company

Sipce-Afthes could ot finance
a project by himself, he
/succeeded in convincing Judge J. W.
{ Langley of Seattle to form the
\ Langley Land and Impfovement
\Company in 1889. A
~A townsite was-Surveyed and
plattédand-named for Judge Lang-
ley. A dock was built, a hotel erect-
ed and several small cottages built.

Anthes built a residence which he
and his wife Leafy and their four
children lived in for 18 years.

n 1891 Anthes built the first store
in Langley, established a post office
and became the firét postmaster.
inued to own the ma-
jority of the Langley area until
about 1905 when ownership in the
business community had become
decentralized.

Names appearing prominently in

Langley affairs after 1905-included
Hunziker, ‘Leod, Ho Fur-
man, Mc@ipnis, Anderson, \ Coe,

Strawbridge, Cattron, Bainter,
Simon, Jensen, Melsen and latgr, in
the 1920’s Noble, Primavers and
Clyde.

John Frederi unziker arrived
in Langley in 1899 and settled his
family on five acres he bought from
Anthes fronting what is now Sixth
Street.

s

For over 60 years the house was
known as ‘The Hunziker Place.*

John Hunziker and his wife Ma-
deline left their native home in
London to serve the Church of Eng-
land as missionaries to the natives
of Patagonia in South America. Af-
ter John retired and tried living for
a time in the Falkland Islands he
came to the United States where
opportunities were greater for his
family.

Walter Hunziker, grandson of
John, still resides in Langley on a
portion of his grandfather’s orginal
farm. Hunziker recalls stories he
heard from his father about what
the town was like in the late 1800’s.

The dock was built at the end of
Anthes Street below where the Dog
House tavern is now, according to
Hunziker. There was no Second or
Fourth Street from Anthes to Ca-
mano or Sixth Street from Ander-
son to Park.

haver’ /served the town) traveling

from' Everett to Camano and La
Conner. The boat came back by way
of Oak Harbor and Coupeville every
other day. e

Anthes had a prune orchard and a
prune kiln to dry the fruit. The Indi-
ans helped pick the prunes with all
the rejects going into big barrels to
be made into potent prune jack
which was sold to the Indians.

There was-only one store and

post offiee; own Anthes, which
was il the area th¢ Clyde Building
occup: L

John Hunziker started a fruit farm
on five acres in the area of Sixth
and Anderson streets. The produce
was shipped to Seattle.

TS

The first store in Langley, Anthes General Store about 1895. The store was located on the

site the Clyde Building now occupies. (Photo courtesy of the South Whidbey Historical

Society.)

A major industry was cutting
brush which grew up after the area
had been logged. The brush was
hauled to Seatle for fill on the wa-
terfront.

The only community building was
the Union Hall with a stage where
Plays and other gatherings were en-
Joyed.

“My Grandfather came out West
from Minnesota and was not famili-
ar with Western phrases,” Huntzik-
er said.

One day an Indian squaw, who
spoke little English, came to the
Hunziker’s home with a large sal-
mon to sell.

Early days stories

“My Grandfather, not knowing
what two bits was, offered her two
nickles. She refused. He then tried
putting two dimes in her hand, and
she again said 'no, two bits,” but she
took the money anyway.”

She left but returned the next
week with her husband leading her
by several steps.

The husband cleared up the mat-
ter by saying, “Two bits - a quarter -
25 cents.”

That was John's first lesson in
Western slang.

Life in the frontier had lots of
seary moments which Hunizker re-
tallsyin. another story -about his
grandfather.

“He was standing on the porch
one night expecting his oldest son
home, when he saw a large form in
the darkness.”

John called out, “Is that you
Fred?”

The dark form came closer but
never answered. John stepped back

and knocked over the slop bucket
making quite a racket which scared
off the stranger. The next morning
the Hunzikers were amazed to find
bear tracks right where the dark
form had appeared.

The Hunziker and the Howard
families were closely intertwined.
John’s son Walt Sr. married Alice
Howard whose family arrived from
Nebraska in 1900.

Edward Howard built a hotel
which was located where the new
Inn at Langley is being built. The
Howards also built a general mer-
chandise store on First Street, di-
rectly across from the Anthes Em-
porium. He was soon appointed
postmaster to replace Anthes.

There was another hotel in Lang-
ley during the early years called
The Cooper which burned in 1921.
It was located where the stain glass
studio now sits, according to Hun-
ziker,

. Another Langley landmark, The
Dog House, was built by local busi-
nessmen in September, 1908 as a
club house for sporting events. It

Club. Accounts of the sporting
events are covered in the entertain-
ment story in this issue,

After a struggling beginning the
building was taken over by Ed How-
ard who re-established his general
store on the ground floor. Three
years later he turned the store over
to his son-in-law, Walter Hunziker
Sr. and Walter’s brother, Oscar, The
store was christened the Langley
Mercantile and General Merchan-
dise and became a popular place for
residents to meet and visit.

Vella Howard eventually took ov-
er the building and at the end of
prohibition she converted the main
floor into a tavern which became
known as The Dog House.

In 1913 several energetic citizens
decided that Langley should be-
come¢ an independent, self-
governing, incorporated town. The
town elected F E. Furman as its
first mayor.

There were many others who
have played a large role in Lang-
ley’s history throughout the years,
as the town, once only a forest wil-
derness, continues to grow.

was called the Olympic Athletic
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Burning of the old Cooper Hotel in Langley on the site where |

the glass studio and gallery is today. The hotel burned in
1921. (Photo courtesy of Walt Hunziker.)

Attached to the Fort Casey Inn property is ?{
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Howard Store and Post Office.

The “Island County News”
was first published on June 5,
1884, but lasted for only a few
issues. On March 21, 1890 the first
“Island County Sun’’, un der the
ownership of Charles W. Angel,
was mailed to subscribers. A se-
cond paper, the “Island County
Times,"” was established in 1891
as a result of “‘liberal’’ sermons
published in the Sun.

On June 1, 184 E. G. Earle,
managing editor of the ‘‘Walla
Walla Union” purchased the Sun
and the Times, consolidating
them under the name of the
Island County Times.

“The Whidbey Island,” an
eight page twice monthly
newspaper, published in
Freeland by DeForest and Ethel
Sanford beginning in 1900. The
Sanfords were members of the
Socialist group which had

" established the Free Land Com-
munity. On April 15, 1903 the
editors of the “Whidbey
Islander” announced the paper’s
probable demise.

The South Whidbey Record
was established in 1923,

Serving So'uth Whidbey Island
23

since 19
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2nd & Anthes ¢ Langley
321-5300

Logging In Langley in 1908. Photo includes Geo. Swain, W.J. Hunziker, Edw
Foster and Bill Howard on a huge cedar log at the corner of First and Anthes. In back is the
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Republican Central Committee
Objective of the ICRCC

The objective of the Island County Republican Central Com-
mittee is to facilitate cooperation among all Island County
Republicans for the purpose of:
A. Identifying and electing intelligent, honest Republican
candidates to County, State, and Federal positions
B. To encourage registered voters to participate, and to

Executive Board

Chalrman — Andrew Pringle Jr., Freeland, WA
Vice Chalrman — Vickie Churchill, Oak Harbor, WA
Secretary — Sarah Nortz, Oak Harbor, WA
Treasurer — Jo Balda, Oak Harbor, WA
State Committeeman — Martin Matthews,
Freeland, WA
State Committeewoman — Mary Smith,
Clinton, WA
.Chalrman Area 1A — Glen Duke, Coupeville,
6785341
Chalrman Area 1B — Dorothy Cleveland, Langley,
3216320
Chalrman Area 1C — Dick Jennings, Freeland,
1-4655

Chalrman Area 2A — James Goheen, Oak Harbor,
6755296
Chalrman Area 2B — George Churchill, Oak Harbor,

679-40.
Chalrman Area 3A — Robert Thomas, Camano Island,
629.4777
Chalrman Area 3B — Glenn Walker, Oak Harbor,
675-7281

ard Howard, Billy
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Fort Casey Inn, circa 1909, is former Officers’
Quarters restored to their splendor and roman-
tic patriotism. Built for the then active defen-
sive installation of Fort Casey, the Inn is

located next door to Fort Casey State Park

Wwhich encompasses the fort, ers and

10-inch disappearing guns. Guests to Fort

Casey Inn are provided with a refurbished

rgian Revival 2-bedroom house. i

Fort Casey was one of the three coastal

defense forts at the entrance of Admiralty In-

let, joining Fort Flagler and Fort Worden. The
fort, activated in 1900, was named for Brig.

General Thomas Lincoln Casey, Chief of

Engineers, U.S. Army. _

. Fort Casey Inn was purchased in 1956 from
the U.S. Government at a public auction by the
Hoenig Family, which has opened the homes
to E‘eﬂs for the past 33 years. Fort Casey Inn
is the only privately owned former officers
quarters in the state of Washington. Built to
withstand attacks on Fort Casey, the houses
were built with reinforced basements for use
as bomb shelters, Several of the houses retain
their steel shuttered windows.

the original physicians’ quarters used to house

the fort doctor. The first physician was Dr. E. ]
H. Sargent, an army contract doctor, who ar- Q‘
rived with the original 30-man army detach-
ment prior to completion of the fort. Dr.
Sargent stayed with the detachment officer, Lt. Q'
Alfred D. Putnam, until his own quarters were
completed. He supervised the building of the /]
dispensary and hospital, located just behind his ?'
house, where he treated the townspeople as well
as the soldiers. The dispensary and hospital are 4
gone, although the steps to the hospital remain lt'
in the woods behind the newly restored physi-
cians’ quarters. & A
By 1908 Fort Casey was in full operation and | »
ranked as the fourth largest military post in the |
state, having a staff of ten officers and 428 men. ,‘
The big guns at the fort were first fired on y
September 11, 1901. M
(E:uests canspend time browsing through the /‘
shops of historic Coupeville, located five »
minutes away by car, or take the Port Town-

send/Keystone Ferry (.9 miles from the Inn)

l

to the wonderful shops and ambiance of the 4
Port Townsend community. Whidbey Island
has countless activities to offer, from many
sites of early frontier living to spectacular
Deception Pass, only a short scenic drive from Q
tne Inn.

In addition to exploring the fort, guests are /1
invited to enjcéy the public beaches and trails }
at Fort Casey State Park. Spectacular views of N
the Strait of Juan de Fuca, Olympic and g
Cascade mountains and San Juan Island are {5
withing walking distance. The Inn overlooks '\
Crockett Lake, a natural Sbolrd ;anctuary and %
Admiralty Bay on Puget Sound. ;

Reservations may be made by sending the Q
first night's lodgings as a deposit. Cancellations 7
must be made no later than one week in ad- &
vance to receive a refund ($10 cancellation fee).
Rates may be subject to seasonal change. &
Smoking only on front porch. No pets, please.
Rates: $85.00 for 2 bedrooms, bath, living area k¢

and farm kitchen. Check-in time: 3-7 p.m.;
check out time: 11 a.m.

i

Fort Casey Inn
1124 S, Road, Coupeville, WA 98239
Whidbey Island » 1-206-678-8792
Your hosts: Gordon and Victoria Hoenig
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South Whidbey’s pioneer folks

CONTINUED FROM PAGE 1

one of these trips in February, 1886,
having transacted his business in
Port Townsend where he received a
considerable sum of money, he em-
barked on his homeward journey
but never reached home. Instead he
was found dead in his boat the fol-
lowing morning. Authorities pre-
sumed he died of natural causes
since there was no sign of violence,
but his family believed differently
because no money was found on his
person or in the boat, although he
was known to have left Port Town-
send with a sizeable sum.

Deer Lagoon

In 1858 a young man of 28 years,
Edward Oliver from Virginia, heard
rumors that Whidbey Island was a
veritable paradise with land free for
the taking. He took passage on the
ship Glencoe landing on Whidbey
Island at the head of Useless Bay
near what is now Bayview.

After exploring South Whidbey,
Oliver started a logging operation
on Deer Lagoon.

Deer Lagoon was made up of two
small bays, one to the north and one
to the northwest on Sunlight Beach.
Dikes today have dried the area that
once was Deer Lagoon but before
they were built, water flooded the
entire expanse twice a day to the
present site of the Whidbey Tele-
phone building at Bayview.

Oliver established a home on a
large tract on the west side of Deer
Lagoon approximately where the
Useless Bay Golf and Country Club
is now. He married Melvina Sooy,
whose mother was Indian and
whose father was white and they
became the parents of four children,
Hester, Mary, Phillip and Edward,
Jr, Melvina died in 1886.

On April 3, 1887 Oliver took as
his wife Jane Johnson (Gah-toh-
litsa), widow of the ill-fated William
T. Johnson. Edward and Jane be-
came the parents of six children,
Willis, Martin, Jessie, Alfred, Wal-
ter and Edith. Jane Oliver, who lived
until 1945, became known as
“Grandma Oliver” to many South
Whidbey folks and remained a col-
orful character even in her old age.

There were many stories of sail-
ors deserting ship to live in the new
land of the Northwest. Such a man
was Thomas Johns, who along with
eight other crew members deserted
their English ship one night, rowed
from Esquimault, B.C. near Victoria
to Dungeness near Port Townsend.

The nine men decided to separate
so they wouldn’t be captured. Johns
went to Port Ludlow where he met

Elmer Jewett, Ray Bailey and
Ed Ellis, sons of the first pion-
eers of Cultus Bay. Courtesy of
the South Whidbey Historical
Society.

ly out of his teens, became the ow-
ner of one of the most beautiful
tracts of low bank waterfront and
backlands on South Whidbey. Porter
brought a cabin from Port Townsend
to Mutiny Bay on a scow and was
ready to settle his new land.

He took a wife, believed to have
been a young woman whose name
was Tidwell. Descendants say there
were at least two children, Asa and
Florence, born of this union. Porter
prospered and continued to acquire
more land until his holdings were
about 1,000 acres stretching from
Mutiny Bay to Holmes Harbor.

At some time during this period
his wife died and on May 15, 1889
he married Louisa Johnson, daugh-
ter if the ill-fated William Johnson
and Gah-toh-litsa. They became the
parents of eight children, Leo,
Blanche, Florence, Lena, Omer, Joe,
William and Delight.

Many of their descendants still
live on South Whidbey and are
leaders in the community.

“Brown’s Point

In 1859, the same year that Tho-
mas Johns unceremoniously left the
British navy to become a solid citi-
zen on the western shore of South
Whidbey, a 19 year old Portuguese
seaman, Joscph Brown, took similar
impromptu leave of his ship on
South Whidbey’s eastern shore.

He found his way to the Indian
village located on what is now
known as Sandy Point and integrat-

bey timber to supply a Port Ludlow
mill in which they owned a part
interest and also to fill orders for
lumber in San Francisco where
their firm was based.

The firm consisted of Zachariah
Amos, Arthur Phinney and William
Hooke. Arthur Phinney decided to
launch into the real estate business
independently of the firm and sold
some property to several individu-
als.

In 1877 Phinney died leaving a
will that turned his property over to
his brother, John G. Phinney of Port
Ludlow.

John moved into his South Whid-
bey property and started the begin-
nings of a village, including a post
office. He also started dealing in
real estate and one of his more no-
table sales was that of 120 acres to
Jacob Anthes in 1881 for $100. This
later became a part of the town of
Langley.

Early in 1895 Phinney disap-
peared mysteriously leaving his
business unattended and no trace of
what had happened. His property
was unclaimed for several years and
the taxes remained unpaid until Feb.
15, 1906 when the waterfront tract
of 44 acres was sold by the sheriff
to AJ. McMillan for deliquent taxes
in the amount of $38.64 plus charg-
es of $24.75.

The official record of John Phin-
ney ends here but a story immerged
in 1935 relating to the circumstanc-
es of the 44 year old mystery which
many people believe. The story was
told by B.N. Thorsheim of Clinton.

"He told of a visitor from Oregon,

Peter Henderson who knew there
had been trouble between Phinney
and one of his hired men; a fight
ensued during which Phinney was
killed. The murderer then fled to
Oregon and was personally know to
Henderson.

The town which Phinney had
started, between Clinton and Glen-
dale gradually disappeared as its
functions were taken over by the
rapidly developing village of Clin-
ton.

Bush Point

A sea captain, Christian Madsen,
whose various ships including
Thatcher, H.C. Page and Letitia,
were at one time or another during
the two decades from 1865 to 1885
used by almost all the settlers on
the shores of Mutiny Bay and Use-

e e e ey
devoted his energies to establishing
a flourishing farm.

Apparently one of his first acts
after he established his home was
to sever his connections with the
Indian longhouse. He started taking
down the potlatch house at Bush
Point and burned it on Dec, 7, 1886,
according to the log of his schooner,

less Bay. Included in his ships’ logs
is a notation that he loaded hay
from the Nathanicl Porter farm as
carly as 1869 and as late as 1886 he
attended the funeral of William T,
Johnson,

Madsen was born in Denmark in
January, 1832, At an early age he
became a seaman and soon ac-
quired his own ship. In 1857 he
sailed his ship across the ocean,
around The Horn and up the west
coast of the United States to San
Francisco.

At that time San Francisco was
involved in a building boom and
lumber was needed not only for
buildings but also for dock pilings.

The virgin stands of timber on the
Olympic Peninsula and South
Whidbey provided an ideal source.
Madsen soon established a thriving
shipping business transporting lum-
ber from Washington Territory to
California.

He maintained his southern head-
quarters in San Francisco and his
northern base of operations at Port
Ludlow in Lyons Hotel whose ow-
ner, Mike Lyons, also had timber
land and a mill in the Maxwelton
area of South Whidbey.

Until 1870 Madsen was strictly a
seaman but that year he began lead-
ing a double life. In public he was a
ship’s captain and apparently a ba-
chelor but his private life, which he
attempted to keep secret for several
years, involved a wive, three step-
children and a small farming project
at South Whidbey’s Bush Point,
then known as Willow Point. His
wifc was Emily Low, a Calallam In-
dian woman whose husband, a
white man, had died and left her
with three children, Tommy, Emily
and Minnie.

Madsen established his new fami-
ly at Willow Point in one of the
longhouses in the Indian village
there. He continued to live in Port
Ludlow when not at sea or in San
Francisco, but he made periodic vis-
its to Willow Point, coming in a
small sailing scow which he could
moor on the beach while his large
freighter was conspicuously
berthed at Port Ludlow or Port
Townsend. When he was on the
island Madsen used the name, “Jim
Brown,” which later evolved into
*“Jim Madsen.”

He gained his land at Willow
Point through a poker game at Port
Townsend. In 1881 he made sure of
the title to his property by filing a
pre-emption claim which was re-
corded in the county courthouse.

Madsen built a large warehouse
on his property and a cottage for
Emily and her children. He retired

A portrait of Jacob Anthes founder of Langley. (Photo courte
of the South Whidbey Historical Society) sy

Holmes Harbor

Intrigued by the stories of the
balmy climate lush vegetation of
the Pacific Northwest and after sev-
eral years of struggling with the se-
vere Minnesota winters, Emil Pear-
son, an immigrant from Sweden de-
cided to come west.

He and his wife and three chil-
dren arrived on South Whidbey in
1883 and took out homestead rights
on 160 acres on the west slope of
the hill overlooking Holmes Harbor
on the west and Lone Lake on the
east.

Emil and his sons, Andrew and
Charles, built what is believed to be

the first house in the Holmes Har-
bor-Lone Lake area. It was a large
house with four bedrooms, a family
room, a kitchen and a parlor made
entirely of logs dovetailed together
without nails. The foundation of the
»ld house is still in existence on the
highest point of the hill above Lone
Lake, as are the graves of Emil
Pearson and his wife.

Emil's son Charles, married
Amanda (Annie) Little, a widow
with four children, Otis, Ivan, Coral
and Bernice. Charles and Amanda
later became the parents of a
daughter, Iola. Until the children
were grown, Charles and his family
lived in the original house built by
his father.

Statehood day island tour
reveals issues of the day

CONTINUED FROM PAGE 1

Brown'’s Point visit

Qur courier could see his point. He went back to his boat and mulled
over in his mind the activities he had encountered on this visit to South
Whidbey, two weddings, a birthing, a conflagration and now a probable
murder. He was tempted to give up the whole thing and head back for

Olympia.

There was a smattering of names on his list of people who lived inland
but he wasn't sure just how to find them and, more importantly, he had

lost his enthusiasm for the task.

However, there was one more on-shore settlement on his list, Brown’s
Point and it was just a short distance north of Clinton so he once more
put to sea, arriving shortly at the settlement. It wasn't as developed as
Clinton but was quite impressive. There was a dock with a makeshift sort
of lighthouse and a big house on a knoll above the beach. Some children
were playing near the dock and he inquired where he might find the
owner of the place, Joseph Brown. A child pointed to the house.

‘“Papa’s up at the house with Jake Anthes and some men from Seattle.

Are you one of them?"”

*“No, our traveler replied, *“‘but I have some big news for them.”
He headed for the house and was met at the door by Joseph Brown.
When he stated his business Brown let out a whoop and called to a group

Af cman cantad nenunnd a tahla in ahat annaarad ta ha a dinine sanee S0 a..

fellows, it’s finally happened. At long last Washington has gained state-

hood. Hooray!™

A handsome man in his middle twenties stepped forward, shook our
courier’s hand and exclaimed, “This is wonderful news. We are just now
formulating plans for a platted town just up the beach a ways on a
beautiful little cove. We are going to call our new town Langley, after the
Judge over here.” He pointed to an important looking man seated at the
table. ““This means that our new town will actually belong to a state with
full citizenship rights. Let’s celebrate!™

And celebrate they did, with exclamation points instead of periods.

H.C. Page.

That's about the way things were on South Whidbey at the time of

JOAN McPHERSON

ATTORNEY AT LAW

“’Personal Attention To
Your Legal Needs’”

é 678-5145

ONE FRONT STREET * COUPEVILLE

’ 1 BLOCKS NORTH OF ISLAND COUNTY COURTHOUSE

with enthusiasm.

statehood, except of course, we can't prove that a courier came from
Olympia bringing the good news of Washington statehood.

Find him he did. He also found another wedding in progress. Porter, a
fiftyish widower with several children, was smack dab in the middle of his
second wedding to no less a lady than the daughter of the Olivers. Porter
was the owner of about 1,000 acres of fertile land between Mutiny Bay
and Holmes Harbor and, normally, would have been much interested in
Washington's accomplishment of statehood but the really big event of
acquiring a new bride overshadowed it.

Our courier had one more stop on the west side of South Whidbey. His
list showed that there was quite a development at Willow Point (now
Bush Point) with the Carlton family and Chris Madsen residing there as
well as an Indian long house being located on the beach. Our courier had
high hopes that his news of Washington statehood would be received here

ilable
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partnership with him at Deer La-
goon on Whidbey Island.

Thomas soon fell in love with the
island. Oliver and Johns built skid-
roads and used oxen to haul the logs
down to the lagoon. By sailing in
and out with the tide they were able
to get mail and groceries in Port
Townsend or Port Ludlow.

After Queen Victoria of England
offered a pardon to all the young
men who had deserted ships to set-
tle the new country, Johns filed his
intention to buy land on the eastern
side of Deer Lagoon in February of
1872.

He brought a bride, Mary Jane
Coffelt of Port Townsend to his new
home on the lagoon following his
marriage in 1874. Johns and his
wife, Mary Jane, had three children
including a daughter, Florence who
was born in February, 1890 and
married Fred Tiemeyer, the son of
another early settler.

Another pioneer to this area was
Nathaniel Porter who came in 1859.
Porter was born in Boston in 1840.
At the tender of age of 10 he left
home and went to sea. For several
years he roamed the world as a sea-
man visiting ports in exotic places
such as India, the West Indies and
Europe.

He also served as a cavalryman
and while in the army he was in-
volved in a street brawl in San Fran-
cisco where he was shot in the leg
and spent a year in that city recov-
ering.

Considerably subdued by the ac-
cident, he started north seeking a
place to settle down. He first found
a tract of virgin timberland on the
outskirts of Port Ludlow but found
his claim was greatly desired by the
Puget Sound Pulp and Timber Com-
pany.

The timber company offered
young Porter a trade of property at
Mutiny Bay, which had been logged
off, for his claim with a sizeable
amount of money, to sweeten their
offer.

Thus this young ex-seaman, barc-

1o

The Anthes family cabin in Langley.

ed himself into the life of the vil-
lage, winning the trust and friend-
ship of the Indians.

In 1865 Brown married a 14 year
old Indian girl, Mary, and started
building an impressive home on the
bluff above the shore and also an
impressive family of 14 children.

Shortly after his arrival, Brown
established a lighthouse of sorts on
the beach and the village became
known in shipping circles as
“Brown’s Point,” a name which it
carried until recent times when it
was re-christened Sandy Point. The
“lighthouse™ consisted only of a
frame shelter housing and kerosene
lantern which was lighted each
evening at dusk.

As time passed and other white
settlers arrived in the area, the
Browns became leaders in that ear-
ly day community and, for a time,
school was held at their home.
Brown also had dreams of estab-
lishing a town and divided his land
into tracts, streets and alleys for
public use.

Joseph Brown died in 1921 and
several of his descendants still re-
side on South Whidby.

The Eastern Coast

Another mystery surrounds the
story of John Phinney who became
a large land owner on the castern
coast and disappeared never to be
seen again.

In 1864 the firm of Amos, Phin-
ney and Company of California
started acquiring large tracts of
land along the shores of Saratoga
Passage.

In the beginning the firm was in-
terested primarily in South Whid-

Proceeds from
The Island Co
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Life on Whidbey was
abundant for Indians
before white settlers

By LINDA PORTER

Imagine a stroll along one of South Whidbey's beaches, perhaps after a
filling holiday meal, or an argument with a loved one. Maybe a walk on
the shore just seems to be a good way of gaining new perspective on life,
or of celebrating the scason — a summer of sunshine and carefree
thoughts.

Whatever the reason, the beaches of Whidbey are but one example of
the Island’s many charms and the reason so many nomads have come to
call this island their home. Living on Whidbey means not having to
imagine a beach walk at all; residents can act upon impulses to step out
of modern life for a moment into a sanctuary of tranquility, unmarred by
conveniences, or manmade demands on time, energy or resources.

In that first step on the rain-packed sand, or that primary stumble on
barnacled rocks, one transcends the years of time and enters into another
world — a world where moccasins, not Recboks, once left imprinted
proof that life existed long before one’s own world could ever remember.

Whidbey Island was summer home to many different groups of what
are now referred to as Native Americans, but which have been historical-
ly called Indians. North of Greenbank, the Skagit Indians roamed; and
south of Greenbank, the island was territory of the Snohomish tribe.

Yet in the spirit of brotherhood, many peoples of distinctive character-
istics worked in harmony in the labor of survival — Samish, Swinomish,
Snoqualmie, Stilliguamish, Suquamish, and others which partook of the

 abundance of food resources in the summer on Whidbey Island.

The Snohomish people

This article is about South Whidbey, and therefore, is about those
people which inhabited beaches, forests, bluffs, and streams south of
Greenbank. It is about the Snphomish people :Bﬁs&whcn skin color and
culture were pure, where the/ word “white” referred only to snow-topped
mountains or the caps of s which brushed one's while enroute
between the winter lands and Whidbey.

The Snohomish tribal territory-covered South Whidbey from the point
of the marshes of Greenbank, where-canoes were portaged across the
land, through a large portion of Camano Island, past Hat (or Gedney)
Island, to the Cascade Mountains and from Tulalip to what is now called
Richmond Beach near Edmonds.

Winters were spent primarily along the east coast of Puget Sound, near
Everett and Snohomish, and along rivers where some food sources could
still be accessed. The Snohomish people used short winter days to
prepare for times of food harvesting. They repaired nets, and crafted
baskets, clothing and costumes. A canoe was always in the process of
being built. Knives were fashioned out of stone, or sharpened for use in
food preparation. And weapons were prepared for ready use.

Toward the end of Spring, small groups of the stronger travelers began
the journey to Whidbey Island, where seasonal foods could be gathered
and stored for the next winter. By the end of June, groups of Indians
dotted the beaches of the island at Sandy Point, Columbia Beach, Skagit
Head, Cultus Bay, Double Bluff, Mutiny Bay, Bush Point, Lagoon Point,
Holmes Harbor, and on around the beaches past Fox’s Spit toward
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Tendrils of smoke were unofficial reminders that:families werenot =

alone. On distant’shores of other islands still more smoke columns.gently
spiraled to the heavens as indicators of otherseasonal gatherings.

Spring’s first arrivals

One is eager to imagine those first arrivals on the island. After a
wave-lashed ride in a heavily-laden canoe, the Indian must have wel-
comed the site of Sandy (Brown's) Point. For here the children could leap
across the last waves between the canoe and the shore, then roll around
for a few moments in the warm sand before they were called to help set
up camp.

Camp meant building mat houses — shelters made of overlapped
tightly-woven mats, large enough for one family or for several. A fire pit
was carved out of a wind-protected site, and the gathering baskets were
made ready for the next day’s toils. A quick meal of meat or fish, followed
by stewed berries, was prepared. The weary travelers added slumber
sounds to the whisper of calm breezes, to hooting owl sentinels, and to
the everpresent water tick-tock of waves as they licked the shore.

Morning came with an early sunrise — the beginning of one of many

days spent hunting for deer and small game, or the taking of plump juicy
berries offered by overladen bushes, or digging for clams, oysters, mus-
sels anc cockles. Many varieties of fish were beckoned from the sea, then
dried with the other harvests to take back to the winterlands. Occasional-
ly, a seal was spotted and slaughtered as well.
The berry season began to flourish in mid-July on the islands so the
people began to sun-dry under mats all types of succelent delicacies —
blackberries, blackcaps, salalberries, blueberries, huckelberries and thim-
bleberry sprouts. Blueberry cakes were made by squashing dried blueber-
ries, mixed with water, into 8 x 5 x 1.5 inch blocks, then dried again.
These could be eaten as they were, or stewed later.

The Celebration of the Century!
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Courthouse In Coupevllle. (Mural by Ren Briggs)

At the end of those long, hot days, dusk crawled in as tired as the
harvesters — full of satisfaction from a good day’s work and seeping with
excitement for the evening’s activities. Tonight, the group (of anywhere
from one to several families per temporary village) might sate their
ravenous appetites, then squat or lounge around fueled embers while
coaxing legends from the memories of the older ones present.

The elder children might snicker when one of those legends is told a bit
inaccurately to wide-eyed little ones. They know their grandparents are
still in the winter longhouses a water-stretch away, uable to criticize the
storytellers. These elder children know, too, their grandparents will set
them all straight during the long night hours of winters to come.

Sooner or later a female family member comes straggling in toward the
campfire, after having spent an unusually long period of time trying to
remove the “sunscreen” of their era— deer grease mixed with red paint,
which was traded from the Snoqualmie tribe. While a cool wind blows
round her thick, dark hair, she joins the others at the warm, sparking fire.
Here, she forgets hopes and dreams, cleanses burdens of previous hours,
and moulds values by which her children should live.

In the morning her six-year-old son loses one of his teeth for the first
time. Mother tells him to run to the woods with it and “call for dog
salmon teeth while throwing your tooth in the river” or stream. When he
has gone, mother smiles because she knows this game will keep her child
from worrying about lost teeth. The ruse seems to work; son comes back
with a grin, having apparently forgotten his troubles.

/ The essence of existence

N5 W e rrand? o sy Y e 2 s
" Tromhles, however, are on the mind of Father. The very existence of his
ople depends directly on the abundance of the harvest. He remembers
a legend about the Quileute Indians on the Olympic Peninsula: Failure of
the fish to run for one or two years resulted in widespread starvation and
death. While this season looks good, he knows he must use every
available hour to secure food for his people. He knows his thoughts are
shared by those he left behind — those 2,500 to 3,000 other Snohomish
| people who are hunting, gathering berries and roots, and trading with
| other tribes in places other than on Whidbey Island.

Before he leaves on the hunt he decides to slip into the forest’s
protective skirts for a few moments of solitude. Here, he can reflect on
his life, and gain spiritual rejuvenation. Here, he can rejoice in his life’s
splendors — his good wife and his children.

This man remembers his marriage to his wife. His family presented her
family with gifts, and they reciprocated. That, simply, was the marriage.
Of course, had he been of a higher social class, he might have had a large
celebration at a potlatch. To divorce, the gifts would merely be returned,
but the stigma of being the person “at fault” would mean probable cause
by others to shun him as a potential marriage partner in the future. He is
happy with this marriage.

He laughs with delight like a child when he thinks of the birth of his
children. He attended to his wife for 12 days after each birth, as was the
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This pre-statehood scene of the white man arriving on Whidbey Island Is depicted In a mural in the lobby of the ls

County

custom. He lived with his wife in a special birth lodge, and was not
permitted to go near other people. While living there with his wife, he
had to bathe morning and evening and keep exceptionally clean. He took
the bringing of his children into the world very seriously; they were a gift
from nature itself.

In Indian country, every part of the earth is sacred. Every rock, leaf,
twig, or person had a special meaning. To move an object, one had to first
ask its permission, because moving the object changed the earth’s sur-

Xf roundings. To kill an animal, the animal had to be told it would be used for
a good purpose. Every part of that animal would be useful; none would be
wasted. Such was the unity of life in the Indian yesteryear. Survival was
dependent upon that unity.

While sometimes war was utilized, and the taking of slaves from other
tribes was practiced, the people primarily cooperated with other peoples,
sharing in celebrations called potlatches, joining together for protection
in war, or living in harmony with nature so the earth would not be spoiled.
This, along with legends, provided the tribal member with the comfort
that came from knowing an important legacy would be carried on.

Pride in the Indian legacy

7‘3 It is with pride in that legacy that some Snohomish descendents live
today — some even on Whidbey Island. Some of the same principles have
been carried on; some of the same values passed along to children.

The Snohomish Indians, as with other Indian groups of that time so
long ago, could not have known what the future held. When Father was
concerned about the salmon not running and how it could affect the
livelihood and the very existence of the tribe, he did not know that a

= treaty -would be signed near the site’ where one of South Whidbey's
ferries land at Mukilteo.

He did not know his “‘back yard” would not belong to his people any
longer, but that they would have to live with other similar yet distinctive-
ly different groups on a reserved piece of land much smaller than those of
their origins.

He never heard of the Boldt Decision, or of how important it would be
for his tribe to become federally recognized so they could officially call
themselves “Indian,” regardless of who their ancestors were. He did not
know that in a century or two, some people would be fighting over
differences and resources instead of working together to save them.

When this proud Indian made preparations in August to canoe back to
the winterland for harvests of autumn salmon, elk, deer, bear, and moun-
tain goat, he left footprints in the sand which would be washed away. Yet
his legacy would live on. ..

Imagine taking a walk on the beach. Pristine waters sparkle with
diamonds of sunlight. In the distance are mountains as big as the message
of people of all colors who have traveled to Whidbey through the count-
less generations: Let the spirit of all the people who have walked these
shores, woods, or towns work in harmony toward good stewardship of the
land. When Reeboks are as old as moccasins in memory, may this blessed
island still be precious and preserved, and may its people be diligent and
united.
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angley has historically been popular for its seaside charm. And as we join in celebrating Washington state’s Centennial, we look forward to our own
entennial, friendlier, livelier and better than ever. Langley prides itself on good, old-fashioned personal service, whether in a professional office, a
shop, a restaurant or a bed and breakfast inn. Let us meet all of your professional and personal service needs, or help you find unique gift and essential
items in our delightful shops. We boast a variety of restaurants for a special meal out, and lodging that ranges from the casual to the elegant, for a stay-
at-home getaway for yourself or to accommodate your out of town visitors. Langley. Seaside charm and good, old-fashioned personal service since 1891.
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Clinton founders’ gold

seen in tall island trees
Hinman brothers fuel shipping fleet

By CASEY O'KEEFE

The California gold rush fever was over by the late
1870s when Edward and Henry Hinman arrived in the
Pacific Northwest from their hometown of Clinton,
Michigan.

The Hinman brothers foresaw their own special
“gold” in the steep hills crowned with giant conifers on
South Whidbey. The resources were just right to log for
cord wood to service the many steamers which traveled
Puget Sound.

They located John Phinney who had started a real
estate business and opened a post office on Whidbey in
1878. Before long, the Hinman brothers had taken over
the post office and established a dock and general store
on the beach. Their cord wood business thrived. In
honor of their hometown, they named the village Clin-
ton.

Clinton and South Whidbey’s natural resources at-
tracted more and more settlers over the years. Some
saw “‘gold” in the forests and others saw wealth in the
soil. The Jacob Simmons family settled on a farm a
couple of miles from Clinton up Deer Lake Road in
1889. Today, there are as many Simmonses as the entire
census counted as Clinton residents in 1900.

As a member of the new community, Simmons was a
part of the advisory board that formed the Clinton
Labor Exchange store in 1903 when it was apparent
that the little Clinton store the Hinmans had built was
no longer adequate to serve the growing village. He was
again on the board when members voted to incorporate
the Clinton Union Cooperative Store. Simmonses can
still be found in businesses around Clinton today, the
most prominent being the Simmons Garage.

Clinton’s first church

During the building of Clinton as a communtiy, Jacob
and his wife, Halverina, were also active in establishing
a church for the settlers. Before the incorporation of
Saint Peter’s Lutheran, church services, prayer meet-
ings, and Ladies’ Aid were often held at the home of the
Simmonses. Even after the church was established, vis-
iting ministers were guaranteed a room at the Sim-
mons’ home.

Jacob Simmons came to Whidbey along with his
brother-in-law, Ole Peterson. The promise of excite-

ment, adventure and tall timber enticed them to travel
ahead of their families. They sent word home that “Op-
portunity awaits if you don’t mind roughing it.” Their
wives and children soon followed and by 1890, their
Orvick and Skorpin family members had also followed
from their respective homes in Iowa.

Tom Orr was fresh back from the Alaskan “gold
rush” when he left his relatives in Iowa for the shores
of South Whidbey Island. He knew he was Whidbey
bound because he had friends, the Chris Bergs, who
lived near Clinton. He bought a farm, married in 1901,
and became one of the founders of St. Peter’s Lutheran
Church.

Orr started a milk delivery route on the island, but
later he sold the milk to Darigold dairy. He would load
milk and cream in his wagon and drive to the dock.
Before he returned, he would buy groceries at the Clin-
ton Union Store, where he was a member of the adviso-
ry board that formed the Clinton Labor Exchange store.

The Orrs had a telephone installed in 1916 and they
owned one of the few automobiles on the island. Al-
though when most of Clinton traveled to Maxwelton for
a picnic to hear Billy Sunday, Bessie Orr remembers
that fishing boats were used as passenger boats to sail
around South Whidbey.

Early telephone days

Clark Salisbury can remember a telephone in his
home, too. In fact, he thinks the original hole for wiring
could be found in the home his uncle built and he and
his wife now live in on Brighton Beach. “It was one of
those crank kind,” he said about the telephone.

His grandfather, Jonathon Salisbury came to Clinton
to run the Clinton Hotel in 1900 when he bought it from
H.B. Campbell. During the summers of 1909 through
1911, Salisbury’s two sons, Frank and Dallas, would use
a launch and barge to transport their hotel guests from
Clinton to Maxwelton. Frank married Margaret Clark
and their first home was in Maxwelton.

In 1913, Clark was born and when he was three years
old, his family moved to Clinton on Brighton Beach.
Their home was just north of the Presbyterian Church
that is now a private home along the drive.

His father moved his shingle mill down to the beach
and installed a stationary cut-off saw which could cut
only six-foot bolts. He built the new sawmill near the
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Rebuilt shingle mill in Clinton about 1922. The homes from left to right include Clarence Blair's

home, former home of Jonathan Salisbury and Lucinda (early Clinton pioneers and location of the
former Clinton Hotel), the First Presbyterian Church, the home of Lawrence Blair and home of
Frank and Margaret Salisbury. (Photo courtesy of Clark Salisbury.)

—; ©

sl

The old Clinton Post Office built around 1920 had Guy R.
Smith as postmaster. The site is the present home of
Harold Wieland. (Photo courtesy of Clark Salisbury.)

3

Old Clinton when it was located on the beach originally called Brighton Beach about 1900. Photo

includes early pioneers Alec McDonald, left, Gust Erikson, Ed Hinman, Henry Hinman, two un-
known persons, Mr. Frick and Jake Simmons. The old Clinton Union Store and Post Office is the
building on the left, the Salisbury house, Hastings Store and across the road is the Salisbury
Shingle Mill. (Photo courtesy of the South Whidbey Historical Society.)

Clinton Union Store. The cement and pile foundation
where the mill’s engine was tied down can still be seen
on the beach near the remains of the old Clinton ferry
dock.

As a young man, Clark can remember swimming with
friends at the beach and then hurrying inside the saw-
mill to warm up from the warmth of the working engine.
He also remembers the reason Edward Hinman’s name
does not show up in the 1900 census.

‘He died under
mysterious
circumstances’

By then, Hinman, who was the more adventurous of
the two brothers, had left Henry to “mind the store”
while he explored-the stories about Alaska. “He died
under mysterious circumstances,” recalled Salisbury.
“It was thought to be foul play . . . robbery.”

Salisbury’s father sold the sawmill and started log-
ging around what is now known as the Waterman Mill.

Clark attended Clinton Scenic View School until it
closed in 1921. The school was originally built for the
few Clinton children who lived along the beach and

were considered too young to walk, mostly through the
woods, the two miles to Deer Lake School.

The Progressive Club

A shingle bolt logging company was the first means
of support for the Erick Berquist family when they

settled in Clinton around 1903. By 1907, Berquist was
acting as treasurer in the formation of the Progressive
Club in Clinton, which is located off Highway 525 and
still serving the community. !

Berquist also operated a farm that produced potatoes,
wheat and strawberries for market and sold cream to a
mainland dairy. It was his suggestion that the state
borrow ahead on gas tax money to help build the De-
ception Pass Bridge.

Berquist’s letters encouraged the Ericksons of
Strandquist, Minn., to join him on Whidbey Island. By
1904, John Olaf and Sofia Erickson uprooted their fami-
ly and came to settle on a farm near Deer Lake. Before
long, John's brother Gotthard, joined them and then
their brother, Erik came from Bjurholm, Sweden to
share in the natural wealth of Whidbey Island. By then
Erik had changed his name to Engstrom. 3

Evert and Anna Swan were both from Finland and
met and married in Eureka, Calif., before they first
settled in Seattle. An injury ended Swan's construction
jobs and brought him to Clinton to be closer to the
sawmills with his new saw filing career. He and his wife
were active in community affairs. Their big barn near
Deer Lake School often served as a stable for neighbor-
ing children’s horses during school hours. He also
served as auctioneer for basket socials and bazaars. |

Basket socials were a highlight in entertainment for
the early settlers. The ladies would prepare their best
recipes and the men would auction for the privilege of
sharing the meal with the cook. Other social gatherings,
often at the Clinton Progressive Hall, included square
dancing and roller skating, 3

Of course, there was always watching boats dock and
unload which is not too much different that watching
the present day ferries load and off-load. §
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L&L Furniture & Design in Freeland was formed in 1980
Lo offer residents of South Whidbey an opportunity to shop
locally for furniture and accessories. ing unu-
sual and one of a kind items, and original ideas into their
design concepts, the L&L Furniture & Design staff work
with clients during every phase of interior work. Interior
design services include work with new construction or re-
modeling, providing consultation for one item or an area,
space planning, color coordination to complete supervi-
sion of interior design for an entire residence or business.

Elaine Davis, a designer by education and trade, joined L&L
Furniture & Design shortly after the design business was
formed, and has been assisted over the years by a varicty
of capable and friendly personnel. Both Elaine and Toni
Jones welcomed the addition of Julie Joselyn, a highly
qualified interior designer in her own right, to the staff in
mid-1988. Today they form a highly personable and effec-
tive team, sincere in presenting well-designed, tastefully
good quality home furnishings at a reasonable price.

L&L Furniture & Design in Freeland provides a wide se-
lection of upholstered and wooden furniture, lamps, arca
rugs, wall paper and accessories. L&L Furniture & Design,
a division of L&L Woodcraft formed in 1975 by Lynn Well-
man and Les Asplund, looks forward to serving south
Whidbey Island in the future.
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Education not easy for pioneers

One room schools served many South Whidbey areas

By SUE ELLEN WHITE-HANSEN
Staff correspondent

Children of the carliest settlers
on South Whidbey had the forests,
shores and abundant resources as
their schoolhouse — the tutelage of
both their own observations and the
learning of their parents and rela-
tives. For most, the Bible was prob-
ably the only book the family
owned.

But as statechood approached,
small clusters of settlers began to
dot the island, separated by logging
trails which served as roads or foo-
tpaths through the woods. Water
travel was by far the most efficient.
Where several families settled,
schools began to appear, built by
parents and often taught by young
people not long out of school them-
selves.

The Clinton area had the Brick-
yard or Scenic Heights School and
the Deer Lake School; Maxwelton
residents built the Woodland and

Excerpts from

One of the most important chro-
nicles available on South Whidbey
comes from newspaper articles
written during the times. South
Whidbey is fortunate to have news-
papers which carried mention of
this area that date back to 1889.

The following is a list of news
items and dates compiled by Gloria
Campbell who has been doing her
own historical research through old
copies of the Whidbey Record, the
Island County Times, The Sun and
the Farm Bureau News.

News from 1889 — There is a
book of those persons liable for
military duty at the Island County
courthouse. Nathaniel and Louisa
Porter married.

News from 1891
April: GM. Calligan has logging
railroad two-and-a-half miles long
in Useless Bay. May: Saloon at
Clinton closed; business too poor.
July: WJ. Weedin and T. Johns do-
nate six acres for cemetery at Bayv-
iew. Wharf at Langley has 2,000
cords of wood piled on it ($2 a
cord). Aug: South one-half of Hat
Island is burning. Road from Use-
less Bay to Langley completed.
Threshing machine at Useless Bay
(only one in vicinity). Oct: 13 heads
of families, 14 school children in
Langley; Brown Point nearest
school.

News from 1892 — Calligan
logging camp at Useless Bay shut
down in June. M.L. Weedin has four
pet deer, one white one. Langley
voting precinct established. First
bank on Whidbey Island estab-
lished.

Indians go berrying

News from 1893 — Indians
going on annual berrying excursion
to Camano Island and Holmes Har-
bor. Useless Bay crops in splendid
condition; abundance of small fruit;
apples, pears, plums and cherries
are almost a failure. Aug: Hunters
from Pt. Ludlow camped at Mutiny
Bay (first day one sandhill crane,
second day none, third day one Cali-
fornia quail, one northwest pine
squirrel and one yellowhammer,
fourth day out of muck a muck).
Mutiny Bay is sure cure for buck
fever but death to deer dogs. Feek
has railway contract on Hawaiian
Islands; will ship 11 teams from
island, South Whidbey had two-
and-a-half feet of snow. Jacob Anth-
es set out 1,500 fruit trees; Weedin
setting out hickory, black walnut
and beech trees. Farmer brothers
got 350 salmon in one day. Volcano
in Olympics seen from Pt. Town-
send.

News from 1894 — People
from South Whidbey went to Cou-
peville on beach via horseback to
pay their taxes, etc. Disastrous fire
reported raging on ranch near Mid-
vale; peat three feet deep; they
dammed the creek to flood the fire
out. Four threshing machines on
island: two at Oak Harbor, one at
San de Fuca and one at Midvale.

News from 1895 — Campbell
and Atkinson have established a
logging camp near Fox Spit. Sill and
Evans will move their logging camp
from Holmes Harbor next week.
Lots of cord wood and bolts (shin-

Intervale Schools; the Ingleside
School served Cultus Bay residents.

The Bayview school is still being
used for education as South Whid-
bey branch of Skagit Valley College.
Mutiny Bay and Saratoga both had
schools and there were two in
Langley.

Ranging from early cabins in the
dark woods where school had to be
dismissed on dark cloudy days, to
window-filled frame structures
with elegant lines, South Whidbey's
first school houses were one room
with all ages attending and being
taught by one teacher.

Mable Anthes Gabel recalled in
“South Whidbey and Its People”,
that her first years of schooling,
about 1898-1900 lasted about three
months of the year. Her school-
teacher, a Mr. Beane, is described
as a lighthearted soul who seemed
to enjoy playing games with the
children more than the teaching.
Doubtless, he was not much older
than his students.

gle) being cut for export; 100 cords
a month by Jacob Anthes, 100 cords
by Frank Reed from Useless Bay
and a great deal at Fox Spit, Sandy
Point and Clinton. Jan: Highest tide
ever known on Whidbey Island; a
foot over dike at Useless Bay; every
dike on south end of island broke.
May: School of blackfish three
miles long in water off the island.

News from 1896 —Useless
Bay scow load of bolts or cordwood
continues to go out of the bay once
a week. Bicycle craze is alarming;
five new ones coming Sept. 11. Mu-
tiny Bay school closed last Friday
for the term; school began in Dis-
trict 12 and Useless Bay (school
was held in the warmer months for
children’s health). A load of squash
was taken by boat to Seattle from
Bush Point; also a load of potatoes.
Kohlwes and Tiemeyer had 20 tons
of oats. N.E. Porter (Bob’s grand-
father) was elected road supervisor
for the Mutiny Bay district.

News from 1897 — New
school building on N.E. Porter land;
(first school in Mutiny Bay 1885;
another new school built on Porter
land in 1912, torn down 1947). Road
surveyed from head of the island to
Coupeville.

“So far as I remember, we were
all classified as being in the First
Reader, old and young alike. At first
a couple of the big boys were too
bashful to sing, but when the spirit
of fun and enthusiasm was injected
into the songs, they entered in with
merriment,” she recalled,

An honor to stoke the fire

At the remodeling of Bayview
School in the early 1980's, Ger-
trude Becker Siemers, who started
school there in 1908, said her father
had to chop out a half-mile trail so
the children could reach the main
trail to the school. There was one
room for all eight grades, and as
was typical, a wood stove heated
the room, it being a priviledge to
stoke the fire.

The students were a close knit
group, with brothers and sisters
from a few neighboring families at-
tending each little school. Felix Ga-
belein listed the subjects he studied

/

papers

News from 1898 — Trail com-
pleted to remove all brush except
trees two feet through to Coupev-
ille; good bicycle road from Langley
to Useless Bay and fairly good
wheeling from Clinton as far as
Bush Point via Sandy Point and
Langley. Entire region south of
Holmes Harbor was a howling wil-
derness less than 10 years ago.
Road to Coupeville shall be a coun-
ty road 60 feet wide. Exodus from
‘Whidbey Island to Klondike contin-
ues. Useless Bay: over 60 tons of
mangles on less than an acre.

News from 1899 — Missing
and 1900. 18 telephones in 1900.

News from 1901 — A post
office has been secured for Mutiny
Bay to be called Austin. Post offige
at Bush Point discontinued. Philip
‘Wahl place being logged. Schooner

Whidbey launched.

News from 1902 — Solicitor
for Seattle Times calling on
ranchers. Mail carried from Austin
to Langley beginning July 1. Forest
fire in Clinton. Freeland has ripe
strawberries. First Thursday Club
discusses Women's Rights. First au-
to on the island.

News from 1903 — Diking to
be done at Useless Bay this sum-
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at Bayview, from where he graduat-
edin 1917, as reading, writing arith-
metic, geography, history, penman-
ship and spelling.

The students made their own fun
and put on singing and dramatic
performances for the parents, Reci-
tation was common and teachers
would have one grade recite while
the others were to study their les-
SOns.

Some students would board out
with a family if they were not close
enough to go to a school and eighth
grade was the limit of early educa-
tion. Before 1916, grades nine
through eleven were taught for a
time in the Vroman residence house
in Langley, where the office of the
Whidbey Record now stands and
then in the Kirk Lumber building.

However, to receive a diploma,
students had to go to Everett for
their senior year. Beginning in
1916, Langley’s new school build-
ing housed all the grades with sep-
arated classrooms and teachers.

(et g

(Photo courtesy of Elizabeth Dodge.)
The Bayview School, now Skagit Valley College, was a major
step forward in education on South Whidbey.

The first graduating class was in
1920 with William McGinnis, its
sole member.

The end of the one-room school-
house on South Whidbey came in
1942 with the consolidation of the

school district and the building of a
new larger facility, a plan not every-
one was happy about, for it meant
the breakup of the close knit little
groups and separation into graded
classes.

highlight pioneer days

mer. Steamer Dauntless runs be-
tween Fort Casey and Pt. Townsend.
Ex-sheriff Weedin logging near
Langley. 31 pupils in Langley
school. Woods closed to slash burn-
ing or chopping without permission
July 1 through Oct. 1.

News from 1904 — Holmes
Harbor full of fishing outfits. First
RFD mail route; Langley, Newell
(Lone Lake), Freeland, Austin and
back; first in county; Mr. Brooks
carrier.

News from 1906 — Every-
body at Saratoga against saloon at
Langley.

News from 1907 —Brick plant
to be built at Clinton. Telephones to
Skagit Head.

News from 1908 — Island
County population 4,118; Coupev-

chance
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ille 760; Oak Harbor 900; San de
Fuca 185; Camano 242; Utsalady
428; Useless Bay, Langley and Ska-
git Head 1,603. 200 drawn for jury
duty; no more qualified. Duncan
McMaster has small saw mill.

News from 1909 — Logging
to begin at Holmes Harbor. Clinton
Sandstone, Brick and Lime Compa-
ny burned Saturday night. Holmes
Harbor slash caught fire and burned
orchard, crops and several cords of
shingle bolts. Maxwelton has post
office.

News from 1910 —Dance pa-
vilion built at Glendale by Del
Smith. Phone lines to Maxwelton
completed.

News from 1911 —cCalista
launched in Aug. Steamer Fairhaven
sinks in Nov. Steamer Vashon burns
in Dec. Gas drag saw built (wood
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News from 1912 — Brick
plant rebuilt. Post Office in Langley
robbed in June. New school being
built at Mutiny Bay, two story. Mrs.
Jones caught speeding her auto over
the streets of Austin last week.
Langley Road to Ken's Korner be-
ing built.

News from 1913 —Silver sal-
mon selling for 15 cents each. Muti-

ny Bay school had Victor Talking
Machine.

First auto fatality

News from 1914 — Useless
Bay tide of Jan. 25 was the highest
in 30 years; bridges floated away
and the road is almost impassable.
First fatal auto accident in Island
County, at Fort Casey.

*Umbrella available
only for §2,000 |RA.

Some restrictions
may apply.
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